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From: Bruce, Joyce (ATG)

Sent: Friday, December 8, 2023 2:58 PM

To: Purcell, Noah Guzzo (ATG) <noah.purcell@atg.wa.gov>; Young, Alicia O. (ATG)
<alicia.young@atg.wa.gov>; Paradis, Kelly A (ATG) <kelly.paradis@atg.wa.gov>

Cc: Mai, Rosa (ATG) <rosa.mai@atg.wa.gov>; Paine-Donovan, Rory T. (ATG) <rory.paine-

donovan@atg.wa.gov>
Subject: FW: RCW 39.30.060- Seeking Attorney General's Opinion

Hello Noah, Alicia, and Kelly,

We received the below informal AGO opinion request from Representative Bergquist requesting an
informal AGO opinion. The legal question asked is, “If they are not self-performing the work, are
Prime Contractors required to specifically list licensed HVAC, plumbing, and electrical subcontractors
on bid forms for public works under RCW 39.30.0607.” Thank you in advance for your work on this.
As always, | am happy to circle back if you have any question that need clarification or concerns with
this request.

Thank you,
Joyce

Joyce Bruce

Legislative Director

Office of Washington State Attorney General Bob Ferguson

1125 Washington Street SE | PO Box 40100 | Olympia | WA | 98504-0100

Phone: (206) 573-4492 | E-mail: joyce.bruce@atg.wa.gov

From: Wade Taylor <wadet@pacificpile.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 7, 2023 7:44:24 AM

To: Bergquist, Rep. Steve <Steve.Bergquist@leg.wa.gov>

Cec: Steve Grayson <steve acificpile.com>

Subject: RE: RCW 39.30.060- Seeking Attorney General's Opinion

CAUTION:External email.

Good morning Representative Berquist,
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March 15, 2022

Pacific Pile & Marine, LP
700 South Riverside Drive
Seattle, WA 98108

RE: Waterfront Seattle Pier 58 Improvements (PW#2021-049)
Dear Mr. Willis

Thank you for submitting your bid on March 9, 2022, for the above referenced project. We have found your bid to be
non-responsive and are therefore rejecting it.

BACKGROUND

Bidder Subcontractor List

In accordance with RCW 39.30.060 and the Bidder/Subcontractor List of the bidding documents, the Bidder is
required to identify Subcontractors that the Bidder will subcontract for the performance of HVAC, plumbing,
electrical, structural steel and rebar installation.

Plumbing:
The City has determined that the work of plumbing is required for the project. Plumbing as defined in RCW

18.106.010(9) involves “...installing, altering, repairing, and renovation potable water systems, liquid waste systems,
and medical gas piping systems within a building as defined by the plumbing code as adopted and amended by the
state building code council...” The Uniform Plumbing Code and the 2018 Seattle Plumbing Code refers to a
“Building” as a “structure built, erected, and framed of component structural parts designed for the housing, shelter,
enclosure, or support of persons, animals, or property of any kind.” Plan sheets 170-179 illustrate the design of the
fountain equipment enclosure. Plan sheet 186 illustrates the schematic plumbing work required to be housed in the
fountain equipment enclosure. The fountain equipment enclosure is a “Building” as defined by the Uniform Plumbing
Code.

Plumbing Contractor:

As required by RCW 18.106.400(1), “...it is unlawful for any person, firm, partnership, corporation, or other entity to
do work, submit a bid or perform any work under this chapter without being licensed as a plumbing contractor...”
The City has verified with Washington State Labor and Industries that Pinchiff Mechanical LLC does not currently
have a plumbing license and did not have an active plumbing license at the time in which it submitted bids to Pacific
Pile and Marine.

Analysis:
Pacific Pile and Marine’s Bidder/Subcontractor List identified Pinchiff Mechanical LLC to perform plumbing as a for

PW# 2021-049. Due to Pinchiff Mechanical LLC lacking an active plumbing license at the time of bid, it was not
licensed to properly “offer to do work” or “submit a bid” for the plumbing work of PW# 2021-049. Pacific Pile and
Marine’s naming of the unlicensed Pinchiff Mechanical LLC as a plumber for the Bidder/Subcontractor List
effectively results in the failure to name a required plumbing subcontractor.

Liz Alzeer, Director Tel (206) 684-4535
700 Fifth Avenue, 415t Floor Fax (206)684-4511
Seattle, Washington 98124-4687 liz.alzeer@seattle.gov

http://www.cityofseattle.gov





CONCLUSION:
The failure to name a plumber as required for PW# 2021-049'’s Bidder/Subcontractor List renders Pacific Pile and

Marine’s bid as non-responsive. The City rejects Pacific Pile and Marine’s bid for the Waterfront Seattle Pier 58
Improvement Project (PW# 2021-049).

If you have any questions, you can contact me at 206-733-9941.

Sincerely,

Pamela HNonima

Pamela Honma
Sr. Capital Projects Coordinator
City Purchasing and Contracting Services

cc. File
Mark Nakagawara
Jessica Murphy
Ticson Mach
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Thank you for bringing your concerns regarding the lowest bidder to our attention. After
careful consideration and examination of the facts, we must respectfully reject your bid
protest.
We found that the language in subsection RCW 39.30.60(3)(d) authorizes the prime
contractor to replace a plumbing subconsultant who is unable to provide a plumbing
license. This subsection states in pertinent part as follows:

Substitution of a listed subcontractor may be made by the prime contractor for the
following reasons:

(a) Refusal of the listed subcontractor to sign a contract with the prime
contractor;

(b) Bankruptcy or insolvency of the listed subcontractor;

(c) Inability of the listed subcontractor to perform the requirements of the
proposed contract or the project;

(d) Inability of the listed subcontractor to obtain the necessary license |[Emphasis
added|.

As such, we found that the lowest bidder was not disqualified from consideration due to
the failure to list a subcontractor with a plumbing license, because the lowest bidder can
replace the subconsultant in accordance with RCW 39.30.60(3)(d).

We appreciate your interest in this matter and thank you for taking the time to voice your
concerns. If you have any further questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to reach out
to us.

Sincerelz, %‘
William Franz
Public Works Director

City of Lynnwood
WFranz@lynnwoodwa.gov







The precise legal question is likely, “If they are not self-performing the work, are Prime Contractors
required to specifically list licensed HVAC, plumbing, and electrical subcontractors on bid forms for
public works under RCW 39.30.0607?”

As you know from my previous email, public agencies have been (in our opinion) been bending this
requirement to enable the lowest bidder to win. This occurred with Lynnwood when the low bidder
did not list a licensed subcontractor at all (and Lynnwood stated the low bidder could “substitute”
someone in). With the Port of Bellingham, the subcontractor listed by the low bidder was not
licensed to perform the plumbing work. The Port reasoned there was that the ability to “sub-
subcontract” enabled the unlicensed subcontractor to utilize a licensed plumber and that listing
anyone at all was sufficient. And, of course, there was the City of Seattle who rejected all bids
without a licensed subcontractor listed.

The above question (asked with “licensed” emphasized) would likely lead to an opinion responsive to
the root of the inquiry.

Hopefully this is helpful! | would be happy to discuss with you and/or Ms. Bruce if that would assist.

We really appreciate your assistance with this matter and believe it will be helpful for all contractors
in Washington!

Regards,

Wade Taylor, JD | Pacific Pile & Marine
Contracts Manager
0O: 206-331-3873 Ext. 1204| M: 206.741.4782 | F 206.774.5958

www.pacificpile.com | Seattle, WA

(2]

From: Wade Taylor <wadet@pacificpile.com>
Sent: Monday, November 20, 2023 1:52:09 PM

To: Bergquist, Rep. Steve <Steve.Bergquist@leg.wa.gov>
Cc: Steve Grayson <steveg@pacificpile.com>; Jim Davidson <jimd@ pacificpile.com>
Subject: RCW 39.30.060- Seeking Attorney General's Opinion

CAUTION:External email.

Dear Representative Berquist,

Steve Grayson provided me with your contact information and mentioned that you may be
interested in working with us to obtain an Attorney General’s Opinion on RCW 39.30.060 Bids on
public works—Identification, substitution of subcontractors—Review, report of subcontractor
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listing requirements. This statute requires contractors bidding public works to list subcontractors it
intends to use for HVAC, plumbing, and electrical work that is to be performed on a public work.

Pacific Pile & Marine, LP (PPM), a Seattle based heavy civil marine contractor, has recently had two
decisions by public agencies related to that statute that were incongruent to one another in the
context of bids submitted. We ask for your help to obtain clarity in the interpretation of this statute
for all general contractors and public agencies in Washington by obtaining an opinion from the State
Attorney General as to the statute’s application.

For context, in March of 2022, PPM submitted a bid to the City of Seattle for its Waterfront Seattle
Pier 58 Improvements project. PPM listed a firm called “Pinchiff Mechanical LLC” (Pinchiff) as its
plumbing subcontractor. Pinchiff is/was a licensed plumber, but an error made by the Washington
Department of Labor and Industries made it impossible for Seattle to verify that license. Prior to
their discovering the Department’s error, Seattle sent PPM the attached letter stating, “The failure
to name a plumber as required for PW# 2021-049’s Bidder/Subcontractor List renders Pacific Pile
and Marine’s bid as non-responsive” and rejected PPM’s bid for the work for failing to meet the
requirements of RCW 39.30.060. However, because Pinchiff was licensed (as later verified by the
L&I) Seattle reversed its rejection of PPM’s bid and ultimately awarded the project to PPM.

On November 9, 2023, PPM submitted a bid to the Port of Bellingham in response to its solicitation
for the Bellingham Shipping Terminal Marine Infrastructure and Dredging project. After bid opening,
PPM was the only bidder to have listed a licensed plumber as its plumbing subcontractor (two
bidders incorrectly stated there was no plumbing work and the remaining bidder (the apparent low)
listed a non-licensed plumbing subcontractor). As a result of our previous rejection from Seattle for
the exact reason of bidding non-licensed plumber, PPM protested the bid and requested the Port of
Bellingham award PPM the job as the only responsive bidder. The Port, in rejecting PPM’s protest,
sent the attached letter stating:

Pacific correctly points out that RCW 39.30.060 obligates prime contract bidders to list,
among others, the "subcontractor with whom the bidder, if awarded the contract, will
subcontract for performance of the work of ... plumbing as described in chapter 18.106
RCW." This statute does not require that the subcontractor listed be directly licensed to
perform the plumbing scope of work, just that the bidder must designate a subcontractor
responsible for that specific scope of work. As Pacific knows, it is common for there to be
many "tiers" of subcontractors on a large project. While American indicated it plans to
subcontract the plumbing work, if any, to Hillco, nothing prevents Hillco from
subsubcontracting that work to a licensed plumber if a licensed plumber is required.

The Port intends to award this project to the apparent low bidder and overlook the flawed bid.

We discussed this bid and (potential actions we could take) with our outside counsel who stated
there is no relevant case law on the statute as it appears that no party has ever litigated the
interpretation of this statute (strictly from a business standpoint it is not financially prudent to sue).
Our counsel also provided the attached (without names due to client confidentiality) demonstrating
that the City of Lynnwood has also interpreted this statute to mean that even not listing a



subcontractor entitles one to “substitute” a licensed subcontractor at a later date. This
interpretation also seems to be in error as would “substituting” not require an initial listing?

With the above, the stated intent of the statute is, “[t]his act is intended to discourage bid shopping
and bid peddling on Washington state public building and works projects.” The City of Seattle’s
interpretation seems to be correct and achieves this goal. However, if the Port of Bellingham and
City of Lynnwood are correct, a general contractor bidding work could list any general contractor (or
not list one at all) and bid shop HVAC, plumbing and electrical scopes after bid opening. These
interpretations seem to be antithetical to the stated purpose of the statute.

As you can see, both contractors and public agencies are at a loss as to the true meaning and
application of RCW 39.30.060. While the wording seems clear, the interpretation has led to
conflicting results.

Your assistance in making an official request to the Washington State Attorney General to render an
official opinion would be greatly appreciated. Please feel free to contact me if you have any
guestions or need any additional information.

Thank you and regards,

Wade Taylor, JD | Pacific Pile & Marine

Contracts Manager
0: 206-331-3873 Ext. 1204| M: 206.741.4782 | F 206.774.5958

www.pacificpile.com | Seattle, WA

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Legislature. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
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